
 

General Business                                     Lower Saucon Township                                              May 21, 2014 

& Developer                                                   Council Agenda                                                             7:00 p.m. 
 

 
I. OPENING 

 A. Call to Order 

 B. Roll Call 

 C. Pledge of Allegiance 

 D. Announcement of Executive Session (if applicable) 

 E. Public Comment Procedure 

   

II. PRESENTATIONS/HEARINGS  
A. Update on Library Consolidation 

 

III. DEVELOPER ITEMS 

      
IV. TOWNSHIP BUSINESS ITEMS 

A. FEMA Floodplain Ordinance No. 2014-01 – Authorize Advertisement for Public Hearing 

B. Amendment to Billboard & Sign Ordinance No. 2014-02 – Authorize Advertisement for Public Hearing 

C. Approval to Erect Fencing Around Township Dog Kennel 

D. Resolution #53-2014 – Recognizing Leithsville Fire Company  

E. Resolution #54-2014 – Transfer of Monies 

F. Consideration of Discover Lehigh Valley Visitor’s Guide Affiliate Membership 

   

V. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS ITEMS 

A. Approval of May 7, 2014 Minutes 

B. Approval of April 2014 Financial Reports 

     

VI. PUBLIC COMMENT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
 

VII. COUNCIL & STAFF REPORTS   

 A. Township Manager 

 B. Council/Jr. Council Member 

 C. Solicitor 

 D. Engineer 

 E. Planner  

 

VIII. ADJOURNMENT 
 

 
Next Planning Commission Meeting:  May 22, 2014 

Next Park & Rec Meeting:  June 2, 2014 

Next Council Meeting:  June 4, 2014 
Next EAC Meeting:  June 10, 2014 

Next Saucon Valley Partnership:  June 11, 2014 @ LST 

Next Zoning Hearing Board Meeting:  June 16, 2014 
Next Saucon Rail Trail Oversight Commission Meeting:  June 23, 2014 @ LST 

 

 

 

www.lowersaucontownship.org 



 
General Business                                             Lower Saucon Township                                              May 21, 2014 

& Developer                                                          Council Minutes                                                            7:00 P.M. 
 

 
I. OPENING 

 

CALL TO ORDER:  The General Business & Developer meeting of Lower Saucon Township Council 

was called to order on Wednesday, May 21, 2014 at 7:01 P.M., at Lower Saucon Township, 3700 Old 

Philadelphia Pike, Bethlehem, PA with Mr. Ron Horiszny, presiding.     

   

 ROLL CALL:  Present:  Ron Horiszny, President; Tom Maxfield, Vice President; Dave Willard and 

Priscilla deLeon, Council members; Jack Cahalan, Township Manager; Leslie Huhn, Assistant Manager; 

Linc Treadwell, Township Solicitor; Karen Mallo, Township Planner; Brien Kocher, Township Engineer.  

Absent:  Glenn Kern, Council member. 

  

 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

 ANNOUNCEMENT OF ANY EXECUTIVE SESSION (IF APPLICABLE) 

 

Mr. Horiszny said Council did meet in Executive this evening.  Attorney Treadwell said there were three 

subjects for the Executive Session.  Litigation with a Township property owner regarding the Nuisance 

Ordinance; the potential acquisition of property under the Open Space program; and a validity challenge 

to the zoning ordinance filed by a property owner regarding signs in Lower Saucon Township. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT/CITIZEN AGENDA ITEMS 

 Mr. Horiszny said if you are on the agenda, you have Council and Staff’s undivided attention.  If you do 

choose to speak, we ask that you use one of the microphones.  He asks that you give your fellow public the 

courtesy of the floor.  We ask that you state your name for the record so the transcriptionist knows who is 

speaking in the minutes.  If you are up at the table, please speak into the microphone. 

 

II. PRESENTATIONS/HEARINGS 

A. UPDATE ON LIBRARY CONSOLIDATION (7:03 pm) 
Mr. Horiszny said Hellertown Area Library Director Robin Rotherham will provide an update on 

the library consolidation and will review the plans for upgrades to the library interior, technology 

and parking. 

 

Ms. Rotherham said she has figures based on the first quarter.  They have seen an increase in their 

patronage and added four staff members.  They added new technology and new data bases.  They 

upgraded firewall and added five laptops and a charging cart, a new server and 185 new e-book 

titles.  Total technology was $39,027.00.  They are adding more parking and sidewalk.  She gave 

all first quarter 2013 and 2014 circulation and total checkout numbers for LST and Hellertown. 

They are now applying for several grants for the library.  They added some new programs to the 

library which seem to be very successful.   

 

Mr. Willard asked about the technology of $39,000.00, it seems like a capital investment, a one-

time charge.  Ms. Rotherham said except for the data bases, they are paid yearly.  Mr. Willard said 

how do you handle your IT?  Ms. Rotherham said Integra One handles their IT who has been at the 

library prior to her being there.  Mr. Willard asked about the website.  Ms. Rotherham said they put 

all the content on the website themselves.  It’s hosted by a fellow librarian in NJ.  Mr. Willard said 

go to Google analytics for free to monitor how many visit your website.  Ms. Rotherham said she 

will look into that. 
 

III. DEVELOPER ITEMS – None 

 

 

 
 



General Business & Developer Meeting    

May 21, 2014 
 

Page 2 of 5 

IV. TOWNSHIP BUSINESS ITEMS 

 

A. FEMA FLOODPLAIN ORDINANCE NO. 2014-01 – AUTHORIZE ADVERTISEMENT 

FOR PUBLIC HEARING (7:16 pm) 

Mr. Horiszny said Northampton County’s LFD (Letter of Final Determination) was released 

Thursday January 16, 2014, with a map effective date of July 16, 2014.  Therefore, the Township’s 

deadline to submit a compliant adopted ordinance is July 16, 2014.  To date the Township has been 

working with representatives of FEMA to verify that our proposed ordinance is consistent with the 

FEMA model ordinance which was distributed to all Northampton County municipalities.  
 

Attorney Treadwell said this will be a stand-alone to your code, not a revision to the zoning 

ordinance.  The Planning Commission made a couple of small changes, nothing of a substantive 

nature.  Mr. Maxfield would recommend our residents who live along waterways to read this 

ordinance because it’s a little stiffer. 
 

MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved for approval for advertisement of Ordinance 2014-01 and if it’s passed, 

he would like this on the website and in the newsletter. 

SECOND BY: Mr. Willard 

 Mr. Horiszny asked if anyone had any comments or questions?  Mr. Willard said in the 

ordinance it designates the Manager as the Floodplain Administrator in the absence of a 

designated individual, is Jack actually doing that or is it delegated?  Mr. Cahalan said it’s a 

delegated function.   

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Absent – Mr. Kern) 
 

Mrs. deLeon said Hanover drafted this.  Mr. Kocher said the model was drafted by FEMA and they 

tried to match it to LST’s regulations.  Other municipalities in the Lehigh Valley are basically the 

same.  Attorney Treadwell said right now your floodplain management regulations are in Chapter 

90 which will be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the new ordinance which he explained the 

differences from the old ordinance. 
 

B. AMENDMENT TO BILLBOARD & SIGN ORDINANCE NO. 2014-02 – AUTHORIZE 

ADVERTISEMENT FOR PUBLIC HEARING (7:25 pm) 

Attorney Treadwell said this is a proposal to amend the sign section of the zoning ordinance to 

permit and then regulate digital billboards and electronic changeable copy signs.  Right now your 

ordinance doesn’t specifically allow digital billboards nor does it regulate the brightness.  This is a 

draft.  He is requesting Council authorize it to be sent to the P/ C and LVPC for its review and 

authorize the advertising provided that the P/C and the LVPC don’t have any changes to it.  It adds 

7 or 8 new definitions to Chapter 180, Section 5 and 6 which Attorney Treadwell went over and 

explained. 
 

MOTION BY: Mr. Willard moved for approval to send Ordinance No. 2014-02 to our P/C and the LVPC and 

authorize the advertisement for a public hearing provided there are no changes from the P/C 

and the LVPC.  If there are changes, it will be brought back for review. 

SECOND BY: Mr. Maxfield 

 Mr. Horiszny asked if anyone had any comments or questions?  Lois Arciszewski, Adams 

Outdoor Advertising thanked Council for the draft ordinance.  They look forward to reviewing 

the ordinance which should be good for the industry. 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Absent – Mr. Kern) 

 

C. APPROVAL TO ERECT FENCING AROUND TOWNSHIP DOG KENNEL (7:32 pm) 

Mr. Cahalan said last year they hired a Dog Control Officer (DCO) to pick up stray animals and 

they put a kennel in the PW yard to hold the dogs temporarily.  The DCO expressed concerns that 

the kennel is very close to the Tot Lot.   Also, in the DCO’s vehicle if there are two dogs in the 

back seat and the door is open, there’s a danger of one dog fleeing.  They are asking for fencing to 

go around the kennel structure and to enclose the vehicle which will allow him to open the gates in 

the front, drive the vehicle in then safely and securely take out the animal and put them in the 



General Business & Developer Meeting    

May 21, 2014 
 

Page 3 of 5 

kennel.  There’s funding for fencing in the Capital budget for PW.  The quote from Anchor Fence 

is $3,595.00 to enclose the kennel and provide room for the DCO’s vehicle.   

 

MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved for approval for fencing and room in the Dog Control Officer’s vehicle 

from Anchor Fence for $3,595.00. 

SECOND BY: Mrs. deLeon 

 Mr. Horiszny asked if anyone had any comments or questions?  No one raised their hand. 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Absent – Mr. Kern) 

 

D. RESOLUTION #53-2014 – RECOGNIZING LEITHSVILLE FIRE COMPANY (No time 

given) 

Mr. Horiszny said Resolution #53-2014 has been prepared to recognize the rebuilding and re-

dedication of the Leithsville Fire Station which he read.   

 

Mr. Sal Ghazi, President of Se-Wy-Co Fire Company asked to change the resolution to recognize 

Se-Wy-Co Fire Company Leithsville Station.  They will start about 1:00 pm on Saturday, May 31 

with food and beverages, rides for the kids, 40 fire companies are invited, bands, and it’s open to 

everybody. 

 

MOTION BY: Mr. Horiszny moved for approval of Resolution #53-2014. 

SECOND BY: Mrs. deLeon 

 Mr. Horiszny asked if anyone had any comments or questions?  No one raised their hand. 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Absent – Mr. Kern) 

 

E. RESOLUTION #54-2014 – TRANSFER OF MONIES (7:41 pm) 

Mr. Horiszny said Resolution #54-2014 has been prepared authorizing the transfer of monies from 

one Township fund to another. 

 

Mr. Cahalan said this will move $2,043.00 from the Historic Structure fund to the Lutz-Franklin 

Schoolhouse fund to cover the additional cost of the painting bid awarded at the last meeting. 

 

MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved for approval of Resolution #54-2014. 

SECOND BY: Mrs. deLeon 

 Mr. Horiszny asked if anyone had any comments or questions?  No one raised their hand. 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Absent – Mr. Kern) 

 

F. CONSIDERATION OF DISCOVER LEHIGH VALLEY VISITOR’S GUIDE AFFILIATES 

MEMBERSHIP 

Mr. Cahalan said this was brought up at a meeting and Leslie did get in touch with the Lehigh 

Valley Visitor’s Bureau about the affiliate membership for the 2014 Official Discover Lehigh 

Valley Visitors Guide and it indicates the dues are $325.00 for 2015.  Ms. Huhn said you can have 

images, photographs and link to events.  It’s $140.00 for up to 3 additional organizations.  Mr. 

Horiszny said let’s get a copy of the book and Mr. Willard said maybe someone from Discover 

Lehigh Valley should come to the first meeting in June so we have a full understanding. 
 

Mr. Horiszny said we will table this until the next meeting and ask a representative from Discover 

Lehigh Valley to attend that meeting.  Ms. Huhn said they could also bring back suggested wording 

for the ad for Council’s review.   

 

V. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS ITEMS 

A. APPROVAL OF MAY 7, 2014 MINUTES (7:52 pm) 
Mr. Horiszny said the draft minutes of the May 7, 2014 Council meeting have been prepared and 

are ready for Council’s review and approval. 



General Business & Developer Meeting    

May 21, 2014 
 

Page 4 of 5 

Mr. Willard said he appreciates the announcement of the time and he was able to listen to the audio 

recording with time code in the minutes, the two are working quite well.  He said he likes the 

shorter typed minutes and with the audio online being verbatim people can use both. 

 

MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved for approval of the May 7, 2014 Council minutes. 

SECOND BY: Mr. Willard 

 Mr. Horiszny asked if anyone had any comments or questions?  No one raised their hand. 

ROLL CALL: 3-1 (No – Mrs. deLeon; Absent – Mr. Kern) 

 

B. APPROVAL OF APRIL 2014 FINANCIAL REPORTS (7:54 pm) 

Mr. Horiszny said the April 2014 financial reports have been prepared and are ready for Council’s 

review and approval. 

 

Mr. Willard said asked about some grants that were paid to our three fire companies; Se-Wy-Co 

and Leithsville Fire Company grant was $100,000.00 and Southeastern was $50,000.00, what about 

the Steel City Fire Company grant?  Mr. Cahalan said they were first in line and were already paid 

prior to this report.  They all met the policy that Council established to provide the information and 

file for the State Grant.  Mr. Willard also asked what Orchard View was?  Mr. Cahalan said this is 

across from Bechdolt’s Orchards. 

 

MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved for approval of the April 2014 financial reports. 

SECOND BY: Mr. Willard 

 Mr. Horiszny asked if anyone had any comments or questions?  No one raised their hand. 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Absent – Mr. Kern) 

 

VI. PUBLIC COMMENT/CITIZEN NON-AGENDA ITEMS (7:56 pm) – None 

 

VII. COUNCIL & STAFF REPORTS 

A. TOWNSHIP MANAGER 

 Mr. Cahalan said the EAC made a motion about the Open Space Map and the Map of 

Township Parks.  They would like both of those combined into one map.  Mr. Maxfield 

said  with the recent properties they have been looking into purchasing, they are getting 

significant greenways, municipal properties as well as open space and conservation 

easements so they are looking for a guide when a piece of property comes up they can 

place it and see if it would receive additional value.  Mr. Cahalan said they could do a 

custom map for the EAC for their next meeting to incorporate both maps; however we will 

keep the two maps as they are currently on our website. 

 Mr. Cahalan said they thought they had a major sinkhole on Skibo Road.  PW worked with 

Chris Taylor from Hanover Engineering and they dug it out, filled it out with water and the 

good news was no throat developed showing further openings.  Today it was filled back up 

and contained just to the area shown on the photograph.  PW did a great job.  Mr. Maxfield 

asked for the cause?  Mr. Cahalan said he got no report from Mr. Taylor, but he could ask 

him for more information and will get the information to Council.   

 Mr. Cahalan said there is a volunteer clean-up of the Saucon Rail Trail embankments south 

of the Meadows Road crossing on Saturday, May 31, 2014 from 9 am to noon.   

 

B. COUNCIL 

Mrs. deLeon 

 She congratulated the Township on the great new front doors. 

 Saturday, May 31, 2014, the Heller Homestead is having a Barn Photo Workshop from 9 

a.m. to noon for $30.00. 

 Monday, June 23, 2014 is the Ginny Atwell Art Reception. 

 She is getting more gas and leachate odor complaints.  Mr. Schleyer from IESI had shown 

her a spray system that IESI installed which sprays fragrances along the wall and it’s 



General Business & Developer Meeting    

May 21, 2014 
 

Page 5 of 5 

supposed to neutralize the odors.  She called DEP twice with odor complaints and they still 

haven’t got back to her. 

 

Mr. Willard 

 He said the Northampton County Gaming Revenue & Redevelopment Authority Meeting 

was held on April 28
th
.  Our grant request for a police officer and vehicle were approved.  

He talked about Bethlehem Township not getting any money for a new fire truck.  He said 

there is an uncommitted round of $700,000.00 and the group met on Monday to discuss the 

criteria where the maximum dollar amount of a grant request is $50,000.00. All 

municipalities and contiguous and non-continuous municipalities can participate.  Mr. 

Horiszny said that was a Nancy Run Fire truck and they said the casino didn’t need it.  He 

asked Mr. Willard to point out that if that 350-room hotel ever caught fire, Bethlehem does 

not have enough aerial ladders to fight a fire that big.  Mr. Willard said the second 

uncommitted rounds will be August 25
th
 and grant awards will be September 22

nd
.   

 He said the Economic Development Task Force met on May 12
th
.  There was a request to 

have a separate economic development meeting with some leaders from the community.  

He will be meeting with Don Cunningham on June 19
th
 from LVCED and Diane Donahue 

the Economic Development Director from Northampton County.  The next Economic 

Development Task Force meeting is Wednesday, June 25
th
. 

 He and Mr. Cahalan attended a meeting on Monday sponsored by LVCED and the topic 

was the Role of Local Government in Economic Development.    

 

 Mr. Kern – Absent 

 

Mr. Maxfield  
 He said he’s been reading a lot on methane whether you can smell it or not.  One of our 

experts told us methane was heavier than air, but actually methane is much lighter than air 

and it is also odorless and highly flammable. We had some testimony about gasses flowing 

down the gulley last time and it’s not methane.  If methane is leaving the landfill, it’s going 

straight up in the air.   

 

Mr. Horiszny 

 He said he attended the last Economic Development Task Force meeting. 

 He attended the LSA meeting. 

 In honor of Public Works week, the Council is giving a thank-you card to the road crew. 

 

C.      SOLICITOR (8:17 pm) – No report 

D. PLANNER – No report 

E. ENGINEER – No report 

 

V. ADJOURNMENT 

 

MOTION BY: Mrs. deLeon moved for adjournment.  The time was 8:17 pm. 

SECOND BY:  Mr. Maxfield 

Mr. Horiszny asked if anyone had any questions?  No one raised their hand. 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Absent – Mr. Kern) 
 

Submitted by: 

 

 

________________________________    __________________________________ 

Jack Cahalan       Ron Horiszny     

Township Manager      President of Council 


